# **BYLAWS OF**

## EASTRIDGE CONDOMINIUMS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

		<u>PAGE</u>
	Table of Contents	C-1
ARTICLE I	Definitions	C-2
ARTICLE II	Name and Location	C-2
ARTICLE III	Members, Voting and Meetings	C-2
ARTICLE IV	Board of Directors	C-5
ARTICLE V	Officers	C-8
ARTICLE VI	Operation of Condominium	C-10
ARTICLE VII	Fiscal Year, Records, Minutes and Seal	C-12
ARTICLE VIII	Amendments	C-12
ARTICLE IX	Miscellaneous	C-13

## BYLAWS OF

## EASTRIDGE CONDOMINIUMS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

(A Nonstock and Nonprofit Corporation)

## ARTICLE I

## **DEFINITIONS**

For convenience, the corporation (EASTRIDGE CONDOMINIUMS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.) shall be referred to in this instrument as the Association; the Board of Directors of the Association, as the Board; Chapter 703, Wisconsin Statutes, the Wisconsin "Condominium Ownership Act," as the Act; the Declaration of Condominium Ownership for EASTRIDGE CONDOMINIUMS, as the Declaration; the Articles of Incorporation of the Association, as Articles; and the Bylaws of the Association, as Bylaws. Furthermore, as used in these Bylaws, the term "majority" shall mean more than fifty percent (50%) of the Nominees of the members entitled to vote or Board members entitled to vote.

## **ARTICLE II**

## NAME AND LOCATION

The name of the Association shall be EASTRIDGE CONDOMINIUMS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., and the principal office and mailing address of the Association shall initially be 1305 Street, Stevens Point, WI 54481, and shall become 1212 Grand Avenue, Wausau, WI 54401, after the period of Declarant control established in the Declaration expires.

## **ARTICLE III**

## MEMBERS, VOTING AND MEETINGS

A. <u>Members</u>--The members of the Association shall consist of all of the Unit Owners. If a Unit Owner consists of more than one person or entity, the membership related to said Unit shall be shared by such owners in the same proportionate interests and by the same type of tenancy in which the title to the Unit is held.

B. <u>Voting</u>--The number of votes appurtenant to each Unit shall be one (1). If a Unit Owner consists of more than one person or entity, the vote appurtenant to such Unit shall not be split or divided but shall be exercised as if the Unit were owned by only one person.

C. Name, Address and Nomination—Every purchaser of a Unit shall deliver to the Association within twenty (20) days after ownership of a Unit is obtained, a written statement, signed by the Unit Owner(s), indicating the name(s) of the Unit Owner(s), the current mailing address of the Unit Owner(s), and the name and address of the person nominated by the Unit Owner(s) to cast the vote appurtenant to the Unit, (said person sometimes hereinafter referred to as "Nominee"). No Nominee will be entitled to vote at a meeting of the members until the statement required herein is delivered to the Association. The Nominee must be a Unit Owner or spouse, officer, partner or beneficiary of a Unit Owner.

D. Membership List--The Association shall maintain a current membership list showing the name(s) of all of the Unit Owner(s), the current mailing addresses of all of the Unit Owner(s) and the name and current mailing address of the Nominee. Only the Nominee shall be entitled to cast the vote in person or by proxy. A Nominee may only be changed by notice in writing to the Secretary of the Association signed by a majority of the persons or entities having an ownership interest in the Unit.

E. <u>Transfer of Membership</u>--Each membership shall be appurtenant to the Unit upon which it is based and shall be transferred automatically upon conveyance of said Unit. Membership in the Association may not be transferred, except in connection with a transfer of a Unit. Upon transfer of a Unit, the Association shall, as soon as possible thereafter, be given written notice of such transfer, including the name of the new owner, identification of the Unit transferred, date of the transfer, name and address of Nominee of the new Unit Owner(s), and any other information about the transfer which the Association may deem pertinent, and the Association shall make appropriate changes in the membership list effective as of the date of transfer.

F. <u>Suspension of Voting Right</u>--In the event that there is a delinquency in the payment of any Assessment or installment thereof, the Association shall file a Statement of Condominium Lien with the Clerk of Circuit Court for Marathon County in accordance with the Declaration and, from the date said Statement of Condominium Lien is filed, the voting right of the Owner(s) of the Unit upon which the Statement of Condominium Lien is filed shall be suspended until all delinquent amounts, including costs, interest at the highest contract rate allowed by law from the due date and attorneys' fees, if any, are paid in full. A Unit Owner whose voting right is suspended under this paragraph is not a "member entitled to vote" as that phrase is used in these Bylaws and the Nominee of said Unit Owner shall not be entitled to vote until the lien amount is paid in full.

- G. Annual Meeting--The first annual meeting of the member shall be held not later than forty-five (45) days after the expiration of the period of Declarant control established in the Declaration. At such meeting, the Nominees shall elect three (3) directors who shall hold office until the next annual meeting of members, unless such meeting occurs within two (2) months of the first annual meeting of members, in which case they shall serve until the next succeeding annual meeting of members and until their successors are duly elected and qualified. All directors so elected shall take office immediately upon election. Thereafter the annual meeting of members shall occur on the 1<sup>st</sup> day of November of each year. The purpose of such annual meeting of members shall be for the election of directors and the transaction of such other business as may come before the meeting.
- H. <u>Special Meetings</u>--Special meetings of the members shall be held whenever called by the President or any two (2) members of the Board and must be called upon the receipt by the President or the Board of a written request signed by at least two (2) members entitled to vote.
- I. <u>Place of Meeting</u>--Meetings of the members shall be held at the principal office of the Association or at such other suitable place convenient to the Nominees as may be designated by the Board.
- J. <u>Notice of Meetings</u>--No annual or special meeting of the members may be held except on at least ten (10) days' written notice delivered or mailed to every Nominee at the address shown on the membership list. Such notice shall specify the place, the day and hour, and in the case of a special meeting, the purpose of the meeting. In lieu of such notice, waivers may be accepted before, at the time of, or after any meeting from any Nominee.
- K. Quorum--A quorum for a meeting of members shall consist of more than fifty percent (50%) of the Nominees. A Nominee may cast his vote in person or by proxy. The act of a majority of the votes present in person or by proxy at any meeting of members at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the members, except when approval by a greater number of votes is required by the Act, the Declaration, the Articles or these Bylaws. If any meeting of members cannot be organized because a quorum is not present, a majority of the Nominees who are present, either in person or by proxy, may adjourn the meeting from time to time until a quorum is present, without further notice. At such adjourned meeting at which a quorum shall be present or represented, any business may be transacted which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally noticed.
- L. <u>Proxies</u>--At all meeting of members, each Nominee may vote in person or by proxy. All proxies shall be in writing and filed

with the Secretary before the meeting is called to order. Every proxy shall be effective for a maximum period of one hundred eighty (180) days, (unless granted to a Mortgagee or Lessee), shall be revocable and shall automatically cease upon the conveyance of the Unit that the proxy represents.

- M. <u>Rights of Declarant</u>--At any annual or special meeting, the Declarant has the right to cast or designate a Nominee to cast all votes appurtenant to the Units Declarant owns.
- N. <u>Presiding Officer and Order of Business</u>--The Declarant or a person nominated by Declarant shall preside over the first annual meeting of members and any special meetings of members held prior to the first meeting of members. Thereafter, the President of the Association shall preside over all annual or special meetings of members and (as far as practical) at special meetings of members shall be as follows:
  - 1. Call to order by presiding officer
  - 2. Roll call and certification of proxies
  - 3. Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice
  - 4. Reading and disposal of any unapproved minutes
  - 5. Officer's reports
  - 6. Appointment of inspector(s) of election
  - 7. Announce nominations for directorships
  - 8. Election of directors
  - 9. Old Business
  - 10. New Business
  - 11. Adjournment

## ARTICLE IV

## **BOARD OF DIRECTORS**

- A. <u>Powers and Duties of the Board</u>--The affairs of the Association shall be governed by the Board. All powers and duties that the Association has and as shall be necessary for the administration of the affairs of the Association, shall be exercised in accordance with the provisions of the Act, the Declaration, the Articles, these Bylaws, and the statutory and common law of the State of Wisconsin.
- B. <u>Number, Qualification, Nomination, Election, and Term of Office</u>--The Board shall consist of three (3) persons, each of whom shall be a Unit Owner or the spouse of a Unit Owner. If a Unit Owner is more than one person or entity, any of said persons or entities are eligible for election to the Board. If a Unit Owner is a corporation, partnership, or trust, any officer, partner or beneficiary,

respectively, is eligible for election to the Board. If a director shall cease to be a Unit Owner or spouse, officer, partner, or beneficiary of a Unit Owner, he shall thereupon cease to be a director and his place on the Board shall be deemed vacant. A nominating committee of three (3) members shall be appointed by the Board not less than twenty (20) days prior to any meeting at which directors are to be elected. The committee shall nominate one (1) person for each director to be elected at said meeting. Nominations for additional directorships created at the meeting shall be made from the floor, and other nominations may be made from the floor. After the nominations are closed, each Nominee shall be entitled to cast one (1) vote for each directorship that is being elected. Not more than one (1) vote may be given to any person nominated for a directorship. The person or persons receiving the most votes shall be elected to the vacant directorship. In the event of a tie between persons nominated for directorships, a run-off election shall be held in which those persons who are tied are the only candidates. Each director elected shall serve until the next annual meeting of members and until his or her successor is duly elected. A person may serve more than one (1) term on the Board.

C. Board Composition During Period of Declarant Control--The initial Board shall consist of the persons named in the Articles. Upon the conveyance of twenty-five percent. (25%) of the Common Element interests to purchasers, the Association shall hold a special meeting, and the Nominees of the Unit Owners other than the Declarant, shall have the right to elect at least twenty-five percent (25%), but not less than one (1) of the directors of the .Board. The directors so elected shall take office immediately upon election. Upon the conveyance of fifty percent (50%) of the Common Element interests to purchasers, the Association shall hold a special meeting and the Nominees of the Unit Owners other than the Declarant shall have the right to elect at least thirty-three and one-third percent (331/38), but not more than one (1) of the directors of the Board. The director so elected shall take office immediately upon election. Thirty (30) days after the conveyance of seventy-five percent (75%) of the interests in the Common Elements to purchasers, or three {3) years from the date that the first Unit is conveyed by the Declarant to any person other than the Declarant, whichever is earlier, the Declarant's period of control shall end. Not later than forty-five (45) days after the end of the period of Declarant's control, the Association shall hold its first annual meeting of members, and the Nominees of the Unit Owners and the Declarant (if he .still owns a unit), shall elect a Board of at least three (3) directors. The directors so elected shall take office immediately upon election and shall serve until the next annual meeting of members unless said meeting is within two (2) months of the first annual meeting of members, in which case they shall serve until the next succeeding annual meeting of members.

- D. <u>Vacancies on Board</u>--Vacancies on the Board caused by any reason other than the removal of a director by a vote of the Nominees of the members shall be filled by a vote of the majority of the remaining directors, even though they may constitute less than a quorum, and each person so elected shall be a director until a successor is elected at the next annual meeting of members.
- E. <u>Removal of Directors</u>--At any regular or special meeting of members duly called, any one or more of the directors may be removed with or without cause by a majority of the votes of the Nominees of the members entitled to vote and a successor may then and there be elected to fill the vacancy thus created.
- F. <u>First Meeting of Directors</u>--The first meeting of the initial directors named in the Articles shall take place immediately after the Articles are recorded with the Secretary of State and the Register of Deeds of Marathon County. At such meeting, the Board shall approve the incorporation of the Association, adopt Bylaws for the Association, elect the initial officers of the Association, approve the payment of the expenses of incorporation, open bank accounts and designate signatories thereon, and perform such other acts as may be proper and necessary.
- G. <u>Annual Meeting and Notice</u>--The first annual meeting of the Board shall be held immediately after the first annual meeting of members and at the same place as the first annual meeting of members. Thereafter, the annual meeting of the Board shall continue to be held immediately after each annual meeting of members and at the same place as each annual meeting of members. This Bylaw shall serve as the notice of each annual meeting of the Board, and no additional notice shall be required.
- H. <u>Special Meetings and Notice</u>--Special meetings of the Board may be called by the President or by two (2) directors on two (2) days' prior notice to each director personally or by mail, which notice shall state the time, place, and purpose of the meeting.
- I. <u>Waiver of Notice</u>--Before, at or after any meeting of the Board, any director may, in writing, waive notice of such meeting and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice. Attendance by a director at any meeting of the Board shall be a waiver of notice by him of the time and place thereof. If all of the directors are present at any meeting of the Board, no notice shall be required and any business may be transacted at such meeting.
- J. Quorum of Directors--Adjournment--At all meetings of the Board, a majority of the directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the act of the majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of

the Board. If at any meeting of the Board, there shall be less than a quorum present, the majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice. At such adjourned meeting at which a quorum is present, any business which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally called may be transacted.

K. Fidelity Bonds--The Board will require that some or all officers and/or employees of the Association handling or responsible for the Association's funds shall furnish adequate fidelity bonds as set forth in Article VII of the Declaration. The premiums on any such bonds shall be paid for by the Association as a Common Expense.

L. <u>Presiding Officer and Order of Business</u>--The presiding officer of the Board meetings shall be the Chairman of the Board, if such an officer is elected by the Board. If no Chairman of the Board is elected, the President of the Association shall preside. In the absence of the presiding officer, any Vice President of the Association shall preside over any Board meeting. The order of business at annual meetings of the Board and (as far as practical) at special meetings of the Board, shall be as follows:

- 1. Roll call
- 2. Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice
- 3. Reading and disposal of any unapproved minutes
- 4. Reports of all officers and committees
- 5. Election of officers
- 6. Old business
- 7. New business
- 8. Adjournment

M. <u>Directors' Fees</u>--Any fees to be paid to members of the Board must be approved by the majority of the Nominees of the Unit Owners.

## ARTICLE V

## **OFFICERS**

A. <u>Designation</u>, <u>Election and Removal</u>--The principal officers of the Association shall be a President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer. Each officer must also be a member of the Board. Any two (2) or more offices may be held by the same person, except the offices of President and Vice President. The initial officers shall be elected at the first meeting of the initial directors of the Board named in the Articles. Thereafter, the officers shall be elected at the annual meeting of the Board. Any officer may be removed from the office either with or without cause upon a majority vote by the Board. The successor to a removed officer shall

be elected at the same meeting in which the officer is removed or at any special meeting called for that purpose.

- B. <u>President</u>--The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Association. He shall preside at all meetings of the Association and of the Board. He shall have all the general powers and duties which are usually vested in the office of President including, but not limited to, the power to sign, together with any other officer designated by the Board, any contracts, checks, drafts or other instruments on behalf of the Association in accordance with the provisions herein.
- C. <u>Vice President</u>--The Vice President shall take the place of the President and perform his duties whenever the President shall be absent or unable to act. If both the President and the Vice President are unable to act, the Board shall appoint some other member of the Board to do so on an interim basis. The Vice President shall also perform such other duties as shall from time to time be assigned to him by the Board.
- D. <u>Secretary</u>--The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the Board and of the Association and shall have charge of the Association's books and records, and shall, in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of Secretary, including counting votes at meetings of the Association.
- E. <u>Treasurer</u>--The Treasurer shall have responsibility for the Association's funds and shall be responsible for keeping full and accurate accounts of all receipts and disbursements and financial records and books of account on behalf of the Association. He shall be responsible for the deposit of all monies and all valuable effects in the name, and to the credit, of the Association in such depositories as may from time to time be designated by the Board. The Treasurer shall also be responsible for the billing and collection of all Assessments made by the Association.
- F. <u>Liability of Directors and Officers</u>--No person shall be liable to the Association for any loss or damage suffered by it on account of any action taken or omitted to be taken by him as a director or offer of the Association, if such person: (a) exercised and use the same degree of care and skill as a prudent man would have exercised or used under the circumstances in the conduct of his own affairs, or (b) took or omitted to take such action in reliance upon advice of counsel for the Association or upon statements made or information furnished by officers or employees ot- the Association which he had reasonable grounds to believe to be true. The foregoing shall not be exclusive of other rights and defenses to which he may be entitled as a matter of law.

G. <u>Officers' Fees</u>--No officer shall receive any fee or other compensation for services rendered to the approval by a majority of the Nominees of Unit Owners.

## **ARTICLE VI**

## OPERATION OF THE CONDOMINIUM

A. <u>Rules and Regulations</u>—The Board shall from time to time adopt Rules and Regulations governing the operation, maintenance and use of the Units and the Common Elements by the Unit Owners and occupants. Such Rules and Regulations shall not be inconsistent with the terms of the Declaration or the contracts, documents, and easements referred to in the Declaration, and shall be designed to prevent unreasonable interference with the use of the respective Units and the Common Elements by persons entitled thereto. The Association members, their lessees or guests, and any occupants of the Units shall conform to and abide by all such Rules and Regulations. A violation of any of the Rules or Regulations shall constitute a violation of the Declaration. The Board shall designate such means of enforcement thereof as it deems necessary and appropriate. The Rules and Regulations may be altered, amended or repealed by a majority vote of the Board.

B. <u>Annual Assessments</u>--The Board shall determine the projected annual Common Expenses for the Association for the upcoming fiscal year and prepare an operating budget for said fiscal year based upon the projected annual Common Expenses. The operating budget shall provide for a reserve fund in anticipation of unexpected Common Expenses. The operating budget shall constitute the "Annual Assessment" required in the Declaration and shall be fixed not later than November 30th of each year. The amounts required in the operating budget shall be assessed against the Units and allocated among the Unit Owners according to their respective percentages of ownership in the Common Elements as set forth in the Declaration. The amounts required in the operating budget shall be prorated and paid monthly by each Unit Owner to the Association on or before the first day of each month beginning January 1. The operating budget and the required monthly payment from each Unit Owner for the upcoming fiscal year shall be set forth in writing and delivered to each Unit Owner not later than December 15<sup>th</sup> of each year.

C. <u>Supplemental Assessments</u>--If, during the course of a fiscal year, it shall appear to the Board that the annual Assessment is insufficient to cover the annual Common Expenses of the Association for said fiscal year, the Board shall prepare and approve a supplemental budget to cover the estimated deficiency for the remainder of the fiscal year. The amounts required in the supplemental budget shall be assessed against the Units and allocated among the Unit Owners

According to their respective percentages of ownership in the Common Elements as set forth in the Declaration. The amounts required in the supplemental budget shall be prorated and paid monthly by each Unit Owner to the Association along with the regular monthly annual Assessment installment payment. The supplemental budget and required monthly payment necessary to meet said supplemental budget shall be delivered in writing to each Unit Owner at least ten (10) days before the first monthly payment under the supplemental budget becomes due.

D. <u>Special Assessments</u>--In addition to the annual Assessment and supplemental Assessment power, the Board shall also have the power, as specified in the Declaration, to declare and collect special Assessments from all Unit Owners for Common Expenses and from individual Unit Owners as fines or penalties.

E. Working Capital Fund--The Association must establish a working capital fund for the initial months of the project operation equal to at least a two (2) months estimated common element charge for each Unit. Each Unit's share of the working capital fund must be collected and transfered to the Association at the time of closing of the sale of each Unit and maintained in a segregated account for the use and benefit of the Association. The contribution to the working capital fund for each unsold Unit shall be paid to the Association within sixty (60) days after the date of the conveyance of the first Unit. The purpose of the fund is to insure that the Association Board will have cash available to meet unforeseen expenditures, or to acquire additional equipment or services deemed necessary or desirable by the Board. Amounts paid into the fund are not to be considered as advance payment of regular assessments.

F. <u>Default</u>--If a member of the Association fails to pay Assessment authorized under the Act, the Declaration or these Bylaws within thirty (30) days after the date the Assessment or an installment of an Assessment is due, said overdue Assessment shall bear interest at the highest contract rate allowed by law from the due date until paid in full. The Board, in the name of the Association, may exercise any and all remedies provided for in the Act, the Declaration, the Articles or these Bylaws or under the statutory or common law of the State of Wisconsin to recover such unpaid amount. Any costs or reasonable attorneys' fees incurred by the Association in exercising said remedies shall be paid by the delinquent Unit Owner and shall bear interest at the highest contract rate allowed by law from the due date until paid in full.

G. <u>Statement of Unpaid Assessments</u>--The Board shall issue, upon demand by an grantee, mortgagee or other encumbrancer of a Unit, a statement setting forth whether or not any Assessment against a given Unit has been paid as required in the Declaration. A reasonable charge may be made for providing such statement. If a statement

States that an Assessment has been paid, such statement shall be conclusive evidence of such payment.

Any grantee of a Unit is entitled to a statement from the Board setting forth the amount of unpaid Assessments against the grantor or his Unit and the grantee is not liable for nor shall the Unit conveyed be subject to a lien which is not filed for any unpaid Assessment against the grantor in excess of the amount set forth in said statement. If the Board does not provide such a statement within ten (10) business days after the grantee's request, the Association and/or the Board are barred from claiming against the grantee under any lien which is not filed prior to the request for the statement.

H. <u>Fines and Penalties</u>--The Board shall have the authority to fine Unit Owner(s) for infractions of the Association's rules and regulations caused by the Unit Owner, the Unit Owner's guests, or the Unit Owner's tenants. In addition, the Board shall have the authority to suspend the voting rights of a Unit Owner for any period not to exceed sixty (60) days for any infraction of the Association's Rules and Regulations caused by the Unit Owner, the Unit Owner's guests or the Unit Owner's tenants.

## ARTICLE VII

## FISCAL YEAR, RECORDS, MINUTES AND SEAL

- A. <u>Fiscal Year</u>--The fiscal year of the Association shall begin on the first day of January and in each year and end on the last day of December in each year
- B. <u>Records</u>--The Association shall keep detailed, accurate keeping procedures of the receipts and expenditures-affecting the Common Elements, specifying and itemizing the maintenance and repair expenses of the Common Elements and any other expenses incurred. The records and vouchers authorizing the payments shall be available for examination by the Unit Owners at convenient hours.
- C. <u>Minutes</u>--The minutes of all meetings of members and the Board shall be taken and kept in a book available for inspection at all reasonable times by members, their Nominees or the Board. Minutes shall be retained for not less than ten (10) years.
  - D. Seal--The Association shall have no corporate seal.

## ARTICLE VIII

#### **AMENDMENTS**

A. <u>By Members</u>--These Bylaws may be altered, amended or repealed and new Bylaws may be adopted by the members, at any

meeting called for such purpose, by an affirmative vote of seventy-five percent {75%} of all of the votes entitled to be cast.

- B. <u>By Directors</u>--These Bylaws may also be altered, amended, or repealed and new Bylaws may be adopted by the Board by an affirmative vote of a majority of the directors present at any meeting at which a quorum is in attendance. No Bylaws adopted by the members of the Association shall be amended or repealed by the board if the Bylaw so adopted so provides.
- C. <u>Rights of Declarant</u>--No amendment of these Bylaws shall alter or abrogate the rights of Declarant as contained in these Bylaws.

## ARTICLE IX

## **MISCELLANEOUS**

- A. <u>Record of Ownership</u>--Every Unit Owner shall promptly cause to be duly recorded or filed of record, the deed, lease, assignment or other conveyance to him of such Unit or other evidence of his title thereto, and shall file such document with and present such other evidence of his title to the Secretary of the Association and the Secretary shall maintain all such information in the membership list and records of the Association.
- B. <u>Mortgages</u>--Any Unit Owner who Mortgages his Unit or any interest therein shall notify the Secretary of the Association of the name and address of his Mortgagee, and also of any release of such Mortgage, and the Secretary shall maintain all such information in the membership list and records of the Association.
- C. <u>Indemnity of Officers and Directors</u>--Every person who is or was a director or officer of the Association (together with the heirs, executors, and administrators of such person) shall be indemnified by the Association against all loss, costs, damages and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees) asserted against, incurred by or imposed upon him in connection with or resulting from any claim, action, suit or proceeding, including criminal proceedings, to which he is made or threatened to be made a party by reason of his being or having been such director or officer, except as to matters as to which he shall be finally adjudged in such action, suit or proceeding to be liable for gross negligence or willful misconduct. In the event of a settlement, indemnification shall be provided only in connection with such matters covered by the settlement as to which the Association is advised by counsel that the person to be indemnified has not been guilty of gross negligence or willful misconduct in the performance of his duty as such director or officer in relation to the matter involved.

The Association, by its Board, may indemnify in like manner, or with any limitations, any employee or former employee of the Association with respect to any action taken or not taken in his capacity as such employee. The foregoing rights of indemnification shall be in addition to all rights to which officers, directors or employees may be entitled as a matter of law. All liability, loss, damage, costs and expense incurred or suffered by the Association by reason of, arising out of, or in connection with the foregoing indemnification provisions shall be treated and handled by the Association as Common Expenses; provided, however, that nothing in this Article IX, Section C, contained shall be deemed to obligate the Association to indemnify any member or Unit Owner who is or has been an employee, director or officer of the Association with respect to any duties or obligations assumed or liabilities incurred by him under and by virtue of the Declaration, the Act, the Articles or these Bylaws as a member of the Association or Unit Owner covered thereby.

D. Contracts and Leases--Any management contract, employment contract or any for professional management of the Condominium, or any other contract providing for services of the Declarant, builder or affiliate, may not exceed three (3) years. Any management contract, employment contract, lease of recreational or parking areas or facilities, any contract or lease to which Declarant or any person affiliated with Declarant is a party, and any contract or lease which is not bonafide or which was not commercially reasonable to Unit Owners when entered into under the circumstances then prevailing, if entered into before the officers elected by the Unit Owners pursuant to Article IV(B) take office, may be terminated by the Association or its Board of Directors at any time without penalty upon not less than ninety (90) days notice to the other party thereto.

E. <u>Subordination</u>--These Bylaws are subordinate and subject to all provisions of the Declaration and any amendments thereto and the Act which shall control in case of any conflict. All terms herein (except where clearly repugnant to the context) shall have the same meaning as in the Declaration or the Act.

F. <u>Interpretation</u>--In case any provision of these Bylaws shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not render invalid any other provision hereof which can be given effect. Nothing in these Bylaws shall be deemed or construed to authorize the Association or Board to conduct or engage in any active business for profit on behalf of any or all of the Unit Owners.

G. Binding on Occupants--All present or future Unit Owners, tenants, and any other person that might use the facilities of the Condominium in any manner are subject to these Bylaws and the Rules and Regulations established by the Board. The mere acquisition or rental of any of the Units or the mere act of occupancy of any of said Units, will signify that these Bylaws and the Rules and Regulations established by the Board are accepted, ratified and will be complied Owners, tenants, and with by said occupant.

H. Informal Action by Members or Directors--Any action required by the Act, the Declaration, these Bylaws or any other provision of law to be taken at a meeting or which may be taken at a meeting, may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing setting forth the action so taken shall be signed by all of the members entitled to vote (or their Nominees or proxies) or directors entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter thereof. Such consent shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote, and may be stated as such in any documents filed with the Register of Deeds, clerk of Circuit Court, Secretary of State, lending institutions or any other authority required by the Act, the

I. Parliamentary Procedure--The latest edition of Robert's Rules of Order shall govern the conduct of all meetings of members or the Board when not in conflict with the Declaration, the Articles, these Bylaws or the Act.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, EASTRIDGE PARTNERS, declarant has caused this document to be executed at Wausau, Wisconsin, this 28th day of May,1982.

> EASTRIDGE PARTNERS, by its General Partners:

(SEAL)

(SEAL)

OLD MAIN INVESTMENTS, INC., by its

President and Secretary:

Signatures authenticated this

28th/day of May, 1982.

Jeffrey A. Hertz, A Member State Bar of Wisconsin

This instrument was drafted by

JEFFREY A. HERTZ Lonsdorf, Mallery, Andraski & Garske, S.C. 610 Jackson Street Wausau, WI 54401